
 

NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

6 January 2026 Our Ref Cabinet Panel on the Environment 14 
January 2026 

 Contact. Committee Services 
 Direct Dial. (01462) 474655 
 Email. committee.services@north-herts.gov.uk 
 
 
To: Members of the Committee: Councillors Amy Allen (Chair), Emma Fernandes, Joe Graziano, 

Dominic Griffiths, Caroline McDonnell, Lisa Nash and Claire Strong 
 

Substitutes: Councillors Sam Collins, Mick Debenham, Paul Ward, Claire Winchester, 
Donna Wright and Daniel Wright-Mason 

 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN OF A  

 

MEETING OF THE CABINET PANEL ON THE ENVIRONMENT 
 

to be held as a 
 

REMOTE MEETING 
 

On 
 

WEDNESDAY, 14TH JANUARY, 2026 AT 7.30 PM  

 
 

 
 

Yours sincerely, 
 
 
Isabelle Alajooz 
Director – Governance 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:committee.services@north-herts.gov.uk


 

 

 
 

**MEMBERS PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU DOWNLOAD ALL  
AGENDAS AND REPORTS VIA THE MOD.GOV APPLICATION 

ON YOUR TABLET BEFORE ATTENDING THE MEETING** 
 
 

Agenda 
Part l 

 
Item  Page 

 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Members are required to notify any substitutions by midday on the day of the 
meeting. 
 
Late substitutions will not be accepted and Members attending as a substitute 
without having given the due notice will not be able to take part in the 
meeting. 

 

   
2.   MINUTES - 2 APRIL AND 17 SEPTEMBER 2025 

To take as read and approve as a true record the minutes of the meeting of 
the Committee held on the 2 April and 17 September 2025. 

(Pages 5 
- 16) 

   
3.   CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Climate Emergency  
 
The Council has declared a climate emergency and is committed to achieving 
a target of zero carbon emissions by 2030 and helping local people and 
businesses to reduce their own carbon emissions. 
 
A Cabinet Panel on the Environment has been established to engage with 
local people on matters relating to the climate emergency and advise the 
council on how to achieve these climate change objectives.  
 
A Climate Change Implementation group of councillors and council officers 
meets regularly to produce plans and monitor progress. Actions taken or 
currently underway include switching to green energy, incentives for low 
emission taxis, expanding tree planting and working to cut food waste.  
 
In addition the council is a member of the Hertfordshire Climate Change and 
Sustainability Partnership, working with other councils across Hertfordshire to 
reduce the county’s carbon emissions and climate impact. The Council’s 
dedicated webpage on Climate Change includes details of the council’s 
climate change strategy, the work of the Cabinet Panel on the Environment 
and a monthly briefing on progress. 
 
Ecological Emergency 
 
The Council has declared an ecological emergency and is committed to 
addressing the ecological emergency and nature recovery by identifying 
appropriate areas for habitat restoration and biodiversity net gain whilst 
ensuring that development limits impact on existing habitats in its process.  
 

 



 

 

The Council has set out to do that by a) setting measurable targets and 
standards for biodiversity increase, in both species and quantities, seeking to 
increase community engagement, b) to work with our partners to establish a 
Local Nature Partnership for Hertfordshire and to develop Nature Recovery 
Networks and Nature Recovery Strategy for Hertfordshire and c) to 
investigate new approaches to nature recovery such as habitat banking that 
deliver biodiversity objectives and provide new investment opportunities.  
 
Declaration of Interest 
 
Members are reminded that any declarations of interest in respect of any 
business set out in the agenda, should be declared as either a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest or Declarable Interest and are required to notify the Chair 
of the nature of any interest declared at the commencement of the relevant 
item on the agenda.  Members declaring a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
must withdraw from the meeting for the duration of the item. Members 
declaring a Declarable Interest, wishing to exercise a ‘Councillor Speaking 
Right’, must declare this at the same time as the interest, move to the public 
area before speaking to the item and then must leave the room before the 
debate and vote. 

   
4.   NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS 

Members should notify the Chair of other business which they wish to be 
discussed at the end of either Part I or Part II business set out in the agenda. 
They must state the circumstances which they consider justify the business 
being considered as a matter of urgency. 
 
The Chair will decide whether any item(s) raised will be considered. 

 

   
5.   INFORMATION NOTE: COUNCIL ACTIVITY UPDATE AND ACTION 

TRACKER 
INFORMATION NOTE OF THE POLICY & STRATEGY TEAM LEADER 
 
This note highlights the topic for this Cabinet Panel meeting as well as a 
Council Activity Update, and Action Tracker Review (at Appendix A) for the 
Cabinet Panel on the Environment. 

(Pages 
17 - 24) 

   
6.   PRESENTATIONS 

To receive presentations from the following organisations: 
 
1) Letchworth Garden City Heritage Foundation – Environment Update 
 
2) Green Heat Coop – Community Energy 

 

   
7.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

To receive petitions, comments and questions from the public. 
 

   
8.   SUGGESTED ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 

To consider items for discussion at future meetings of the Cabinet Panel.  
 

   
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

CABINET PANEL ON THE ENVIRONMENT 
 

MEETING HELD IN THE VIRTUAL VIA ZOOM  
ON WEDNESDAY, 2ND APRIL, 2025 AT 7.30 PM 

 

MINUTES 
 
Present:  Councillors: Amy Allen (Chair), Mick Debenham, Tina Bhartwas, 

Joe Graziano, Dominic Griffiths, Bryony May, Caroline McDonnell and 
Claire Strong.  

 
In Attendance: Reuben Ayavoo (Policy & Community Manager), Georgina Chapman 

(Policy & Strategy Team Leader), Robert Filby (Trainee Committee, 
Member and Scrutiny Officer), Ellie Hollingsworth (Policy & Strategy 
Officer), James Lees (Climate Change and Sustainability Project 
Manager) and James Lovegrove (Committee, Member and Scrutiny 
Manager). 

 
Also Present: At the commencement of the meeting approximately 7 members of the 

public, including registered speakers.  
 
Councillor Daniel Allen was also present.  

 
 

8 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Audio recording – 3 minutes 25 seconds 
 
No apologies for absence were received from Members.   
 

9 MINUTES -  22 JANUARY 2025  
 
Audio Recording – 3 minutes 43 seconds 
 
Councillor Amy Allen, as Chair, proposed and Councillor Claire Strong seconded and, it was: 
 
RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Committee held on 22 January 2025 be 
approved as a true record of the proceedings and be signed by the Chair. 
 

10 CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
Audio recording – 4 minutes 3 seconds 
 
(1) The Chair advised that, in accordance with Council Policy, the meeting would be recorded.  
 
(2) The Chair drew attention to the item on the agenda front pages regarding Declarations of 

Interest and reminded Members that, in line with the Code of Conduct, any Declarations of 
Interest needed to be declared immediately prior to the item in question.  

 
(3) The Chair reminded Members that the Council had declared both a Climate Emergency 

and an Ecological Emergency. These are serious decisions, and mean that, as this was an 
emergency, all of us, Officers and Members had that in mind as we carried out our various 
roles and tasks for the benefit of our District. 

 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Wednesday, 2nd April, 2025  

 

(4) The Chair informed Members that following a delegated decision taken on Friday 21 
March 2025, Councillor Caroline McDonnell had replaced Councillor Lisa Nash as a 
Committee Member on the Cabinet Panel on the Environment until the end of the Civic 
Year. 

 
11 NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS  

 
Audio recording – 4 minutes 56 seconds 
 
There was no other business notified. 
 

N.B. Councillor Dominic Griffiths joined the Zoom call at 19.37.  
 

12 INFORMATION NOTE: WORK PROGRAMME 2024/25  
 
Audio recording – 5 minutes 5 seconds 
 
The Policy & Strategy Team Leader and Policy & Strategy Officer presented the Information 
Note entitled ‘Work Programme 2024/25’ and advised that:  
 

• The third round of Solar Together had commenced and would be open until 4 April for 
expressions of interest. There was no obligation to continue with the purchase of solar 
PV or battery storage once registered. As of 31 March, 579 North Herts residents had 
signed up for this.  

• The Hertfordshire Climate Change and Sustainability Partnership (HCCSP) had been 
working with the MCS Foundation to develop a Retrofit Strategy as part of the Local 
Authority Retrofit Accelerator. 

• Development of the Local Nature Recovery Strategy was ongoing and the strategy had 
undergone a number of engagement events in 2024 with the most recent one held in 
February to discuss the draft. Public consultation on the draft would reopen later in the 
year.  

• Climate Hive, the Council engagement hub for climate and sustainability had 407 
subscribers to date, and continued to update readers on relevant events, national 
environment days and the activities of the Cabinet Panel. As of April, Climate Hive 
would be provided on a different platform and subscribers had been informed of this 
change.  

• The ECO Flex Scheme had been launched in January 2025 with the National Energy 
Foundation (NEF) to support low income and vulnerable households in making their 
homes more energy efficient. Four applications had been received through this scheme 
and they had all been approved.  

• £1.5m had been awarded to the Council after a successful bid to the Warm Homes: 
Local Grants scheme. The funding would enable the Council to deliver energy efficient 
measures and low-carbon heating to those living in lower income households, 
particularly those with hard to heat, poorly insulated homes. Compared to previous 
schemes (ECO Flex or HUG2), a greater number of households would be eligible to 
apply for funding from this.  

• The Council had applied for phase four of the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme 
(PSDS) to fund the decarbonisation of North Herts Museum, Hitchin Town Hall and the 
District Council Offices. They would expect to hear back on this by May and they would 
keep the Cabinet Panel updated on this.  

• One action was ongoing on the Action Tracker for 2024/25 which was was to review the 
asks of Decarbonise Letchworth regarding retrofitting and Supplementary Planning 
Guidance. In response to this, planners were working on a Design Code for the district 
about what good design would look like. The Sustainability Supplementary Planning 
Document (SSPD) also addressed this action by encouraging developers to implement 
energy efficient measures on new developments. This had also been raised with the 

Page 6



Wednesday, 2nd April, 2025  

 

Chief Executive who had regular meetings with the Heritage Foundation Chief 
Executive. 

 
The Policy & Strategy Team Leader and Policy & Strategy Officer then presented Appendix C 
to the Information Note entitled ‘Sustainability Achievements 2024/25’ and highlighted the 
following achievements in the last Civic year: 
 

• New waste and recycling contracts with environmental commitments including all 
vehicles that were 3.5 tonnes and under had to be electric and use of hydrogenated 
vegetable oil in refuse freighters had been agreed. 

• Soft plastics recycling had been trialled across the district and would be rolled out to all 
areas as part of the new waste contract. 

• A Bee Corridor had been developed in Letchworth in partnership with John O’Connor 
and had won two Green Apple Environmental Awards. Another Bee Corridor would be 
introduced in Royston. 

• Five Green Flag Awards had been given to sites in North Herts which were Norton 
Common, Oughtonhead Common, Ivel Springs, Howard Park and Gardens and Priory 
Memorial Gardens. 

• Norton Common had also received a Green Award which was presented to the founder 
of Green Care at the North Herts Heroes Awards. 

• They had worked with the County Council to facilitate engagement on the Local Nature 
Recovery Strategy for Hertfordshire. 

• A government grant of £40,000 had been awarded to the Council to produce a strategy 
to decarbonise the Council Estate. 

• The first Staff Sustainability Survey had been carried out to inform future work on 
sustainability.  

• Additional EV charging points had been installed outside the District Council Offices to 
support the growing electric vehicle needs of the Council and to aid the transition away 
from petrol and diesel vehicles in their fleet. 

• The ECO Flex Scheme was launched to help North Herts residents access funding for 
insulation and other home improvement measures.  

• There had been promotion of free green home surveys and action plans through the 
SuperHomes project. 

• More North Herts residents had been able to install solar panels on their homes as the 
Council had participated in a second round of Solar Together.  

• Free bike repairs and vouchers for home cycle repair visits had been offered to 
residents at various events across the district.  

• The SSPD had been published to encourage developers to incorporate sustainability 
into their plans and designs for developments.  

• North Herts Prosperity Fund had funded various community sustainability projects 
including a low-emissions van for Green Care at Norton, the improvement of biodiversity 
at Triangle Community Garden, and a tech recycling project at Letchworth Garden 
Shed.  

• HCCSP had been given the Gold Award in the category of Green Public Service at the 
iese Public Sector Transformation Awards.  

 
The following Members and members of the public asked questions: 
 

• Councillor Amy Allen 

• Councillor Bryony May 

• Deolinda Eltringham 

• Roger Lovegrove 

• Councillor Claire Strong 

• Dr John Webb 

• Julia Sonander 

• Councillor Tina Bhartwas 

Page 7



Wednesday, 2nd April, 2025  

 

In response to questions, the Climate Change and Sustainability Project Manager advised 
that:  
 

• The SuperHomes project was managed by NEF and they were offering free surveys of 
homes across North Herts and Central Bedfordshire that would normally cost £250. As 
part of the project, residents received a home visit from a surveyor to identify their 
energy priorities and to inform them of easy fixes to their homes and the cost of 
implementing suitable energy harnessing or efficient technologies based on their needs.  

• Case studies of developments that had met gold, silver and bronze targets in the SSPD 
would be formed and following this, they may look at capturing data on these, however, 
building the case studies first would be the priority.  

 
In response to questions, the Policy & Strategy Team Leader advised that: 
 

• A draft of the Local Nature Recovery Strategy was currently being looked at by 
Members and officers at the Council. Once it had been through the amendment process, 
it would be circulated to Members of the Cabinet Panel who wished to read it. 

• She would liaise with the Waste Team for further information on soft plastics recycling 
and would advise the Cabinet Panel on this after the meeting.  

• Greenspace were proactive in gaining accreditation for Council sites, but she would ask 
their team if it was possible to raise the standards of smaller sites to achieve additional 
accreditations. There was also an action on Appendix B to the Information Note that 
specified reviewing Council assets to investigate implementing additional features where 
possible which would address this.  

 
In response to questions, the Chair advised that:  
 

• There was misinformation on how soft plastics were not recycled due to a recent news 
article where air tags had been placed on soft plastics to track their location throughout 
the recycling process, however, the air tags were removed from the soft plastics and 
incinerated before the soft plastics could reach the end of the process. 

• All recycling produced waste as not everything could be repurposed.  

• Materials that were not specifically biodegradable could potentially last a very long time 
before they disintegrated.  

• Within the product packaging industry, there had been a push to move away from plastic 
packaging and to more biodegradable materials such as paper.   

• Changes to refuse collection bins had made it more logical for residents to recycle as 
much as they could while keeping their waste at a minimum.    

• A new Waste Communications Officer had been employed by the Council to educate 
North Herts residents on changes to waste and recycling and why they were important.  

• It would be dangerous to litter pick on land either side of the railway lines and would 
require a huge operation involving coordination with Network Rail workers and possible 
line closures to make it safe. Network Rail would be contacted again to see whether 
they would be willing to clear the litter close to the railway lines as it was an eye sore to 
the public, however, they would not be obliged to do this as it was private land.    

• It would have been helpful if the litter either side of the railway had been cleared while 
the vegetation had, but it was recognised that the professionals who removed the 
vegetation did not have a responsibility to remove the litter.  

 
In response to questions, Councillor Daniel Allen advised that:  
 

• The targets within the SSPD were not enforceable but there was an incentive for 
developers to meet them as they could advertise that they had been achieved and 
potentially gain more revenue when selling properties on the accredited development.  

• The Council took part in the Hertfordshire Infrastructure and Development Board that 
had representatives from district and borough councils across Hertfordshire as well as 

Page 8



Wednesday, 2nd April, 2025  

 

leading developers in the county. The SSPD had been discussed at the board and 
would be talked about again when the Council hosted the next board meeting. However, 
the direction of the SSPD once local government reorganisation had taken place would 
be unknown until they had more information on what this would look like.  

 
In response to questions, Dr John Webb advised that:  
 

• There were lots of complications with the recycling of soft plastics around chemical 
additives, their reuse life and forever plastics that were impossible to destroy without 
producing Carbon in the destruction process.  

• Much of the vegetation close to the railway lines had been cleared for safety reasons, 
which might allow for litter to be removed from these areas more easily.  

 
In response to questions, the Policy & Community Manager advised that the Council were 
already working in partnership with the ten other district and borough councils within 
Hertfordshire in addition to the County Council to contribute to combined activity to address 
climate change and sustainability matters. It would make sense to continue this partnership 
and any (award-winning) work that had been produced out of it in the future, regardless of the 
local authority structures that were established.  
 
In response to questions, Councillor Mick Debenham highlighted that Watford Borough 
Council had thirty Green Flag accredited sites, therefore, there might be scope for further sites 
within North Herts to be awarded with Green Flag accreditation.  
 
Councillor Daniel Allen expressed his delight at the publication of the SSPD and how it 
prepared the Council for receiving planning applications.  
 
Councillor Claire Strong suggested that they should invite a Waste Officer from Hertfordshire 
County Council to a future Cabinet Panel meeting to give a presentation on the recycling 
process that took place in the County and how they could help to improve the process. The 
Chair agreed with this idea and arrangements would be made for this after the meeting had 
finished.  
 

13 DRAFT SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY FEEDBACK  
 
Audio recording – 54 minutes 16 seconds 
 
The Policy & Community Manager presented Appendix B to the Information Note entitled 
‘Sustainability Strategy Draft Actions’ and advised that:  
 

• A public consultation on the Sustainability Strategy took place in March.  

• The Climate Change Strategy had been expanded into the Sustainability Strategy as 
sustainability was now a key council priority in the Council Plan.   

• It covered many areas such as reducing emissions, climate change adaptation, 
biodiversity and cross cutting sustainability matters.  

• These four areas would be covered in the following presentations from relevant officers. 
 
The Climate Change and Sustainability Project Manager provided a presentation on reducing 
emissions and advised that:  
 

• In the draft, there was a goal for the Council to achieve Net Zero by 2030 on its own 
operations which was also referenced in the Council Plan.  

• Within that target, they would be focusing on their own buildings, vehicle fleet and key 
contracted services including waste collection, leisure centres and grounds maintenance 
which accounted for 90.4% of all council emissions.  

Page 9



Wednesday, 2nd April, 2025  

 

• The biggest emissions contributor was gas usage from leisure centres and lidos which 
equated to 45% of all council emissions. Other key contributors were electricity use in 
leisure centres and gas use in council buildings. 

• 9.6% of council emissions were from activities that the Council had less influence over 
such as staff working remotely and commuting. They had a target for these wider 
emissions to be Net Zero by 2040. 

• There were still gaps in their knowledge about understanding emissions that arose from 
IT and smaller contracts, as well as emissions related to Council Estate. 

• Key actions to reduce council emissions included delivering decarbonisation of leisure 
centres in North Herts by March 2026, implementing the use of sustainable low carbon 
fuels in heavy duty refuse collection vehicles, and wider measures to reduce fuel 
consumption in the waste collection service.  

• Other actions included decarbonisation of key council buildings, particularly the District 
Council Offices, Hitchin Town Hall and North Herts Museum. 

• Work would also take place with the Contracts Procurement Group to assess their 
supply chain of goods and materials and how they could utilise procurement to reduce 
emissions in this area.   

• There was a longstanding target to achieve a North Herts Net Zero district by 2040.   

• Key sources of district wide emissions from the biggest to smallest emissions 
contributors were transport, domestic, industry, waste, agriculture, commercial and 
public sector. Land use such as forestry had a slightly negative emissions contribution to 
the district.  

• They had limited influence to drive national action, but they had an important role to play 
in the district by place shaping new residential and commercial developments as the 
Planning Authority.  

• They could also engage in showcasing to influence district wide emissions by providing 
case studies of sustainability, for example developments that had met gold, silver or 
bronze targets in the SSPD.    

• In addition, they could participate in partnerships to bring groups and stakeholders 
together to influence district wide emissions.  

• It was important for the Council to engage with residents through face-to-face 
conversations, social media and newsletters to translate national policy into local 
relevance and raise awareness of sustainability issues to involve them.  

• Actions to reduce the district wide emissions arising from transport had been developed. 
These were to work with the County Council to improve public transport, expand EV 
charging provision across the district by installing more charging points in Council 
owned car parks, and to secure funding towards improvements to cycle and walking 
infrastructure.  

• In terms of heating homes, they would encourage residents to retrofit their homes by 
continuing to promote and deliver government funded grants in addition to independent 
advice and services or schemes.  

• Government funding was being made available towards community energy projects and 
the Council would investigate how to obtain this in the future.  

• They would look to support community energy groups such as Green Heat Coop in 
Royston as they could play an important role in reducing domestic emissions in the 
district by driving local sustainability projects.  

 
The following members of the public asked questions:  
 

• Dr John Webb 

• Roger Lovegrove 

• Deolinda Eltringham 

• Julia Sonander 

• Chris Jones 
 

Page 10



Wednesday, 2nd April, 2025  

 

In response to questions, the Climate Change and Sustainability Project Manager advised 
that: 
  

• Replacing gas boilers with air source heat pumps, solar PV roof installation, and 
implementation of wall and ceiling insulation were just some of the measures that would 
be deployed to greatly decarbonise the leisure centres. They would not be able to fully 
decarbonise them as they could not carry out certain things such as replace the boilers 
that heated the learner pool at North Herts Leisure Centre, however, they would still be 
making significant progress towards full decarbonisation in this phase.  

• Geothermal or ground source heat pumps were considered as a measure to 
decarbonise council buildings, but ultimately, they were more expensive and air source 
heat pumps were more cost effective.  

• In September 2023, investigation into fitting solar PV on multi-storey car parks in North 
Herts had taken place but this was deemed to be financially unfeasible. It had been 
achieved in places like Tewkesbury where they had used funding from the PSDS to 
deliver this and solar panels in private car parks would become more common, but the 
capital costs associated with this were too great for the Council to carry this out on their 
car parks currently.   

• The Planning Authority had different considerations to make when making decisions on 
developments and would not consider emission reducing technologies if they interfered 
with heritage conservation for instance.   

• Energy demands from the leisure centres would be addressed by both energy 
generation through the heat pumps and solar PV, in addition to energy efficiency 
measures such as insulation.  

• Heat pumps were more widely used in Nordic and Scandinavian countries due to their 
colder, harsher winters.  

 
In response to questions, Councillor Mick Debenham advised that this phase of the Leisure 
Centre Decarbonisation scheme should reduce emissions from the leisure centres in North 
Herts by two thirds.   
 
In response to questions, Councillor Daniel Allen advised that:  
 

• Financially, it was not viable to install solar PV on multi-storey car parks as they had 
already investigated the possibility at Hitchin Swimming Centre car park. However, they 
would consider leasing space on their multi-storey car parks to private companies if they 
were approached.   

• They would focus on decarbonising their current buildings instead of acquiring new ones 
that had already been decarbonised.  

• Community energy would be used in the Harlow and Gilston development in East Herts 
with energy production taking place onsite.  

• Bespoke heat pumps would be custom designed for the leisure centres to ensure that 
they were fit for purpose.   

 
In response to questions, Chris Jones advised that air source heat pumps lost efficiency in 
cold temperatures, particularly if they were designed tightly. Because of this, the energy 
production of the leisure centres could be impacted if outlier views that the Grand Solar 
Minimum 2020-2053 would bring longer, colder winters and shorter, hotter summers came 
true. 
 

N.B. Councillor Joe Graziano left the Zoom call at 21.02 and did not return. 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Wednesday, 2nd April, 2025  

 

The Policy & Strategy Officer and Policy & Strategy Team Leader provided more information 
on climate adaptation, biodiversity and cross cutting matters of Appendix B to the Information 
Note and advised that:  
 

• There were broad themes within the appendix on the Council ensuring that its 
operations and services were resilient to the impacts of climate change and that the 
district was also resilient to the unavoidable impacts of the changing climate.   

• They had assessed climate change risks through the HCCSP. 

• Adaptation was defined as changing lives, work and communities to help face climate 
change.   

• There were several actions listed in Appendix B regarding climate adaptation. One of 
which was to signpost residents and businesses to resources that would provide 
information to them on climate change mitigation and adaptation. 

• Another action was to engage with water companies on reducing water usage within 
Hertfordshire as the county had a low water supply but high usage.  

• They would signpost communities to cool and warm spaces within the district. The 
County Council currently provided a map of locations available which the Council would 
help to keep updated with the possibility of using Council buildings as cool and warm 
spaces.  

• Learnings from the Resilient Together project would be established and applied to sites 
within North Herts.  

• After recent weather events, they would endeavour to record extreme weather events in 
the district and how the incidents resulting from these effected both council services and 
the district as a whole by setting up a monitoring system to record the incidents.  

• They would establish learnings from emergency volunteer work when aiding a response 
to emergency weather events that would become more frequent with the changing 
climate.  

• In addition to broadening the Sustainability Strategy as part of a key priority on the 
Council Plan, the Council had also declared an Ecological Emergency to recognise that 
the climate crisis and ecological crisis were supportive of each other.  

• Since the Climate Change Strategy had been developed, the Council now had an 
enhanced biodiversity duty to not only preserve biodiversity, but enhance it as well.    

• Actions within the actions table could be separated into three categories. Actions to 
improve biodiversity on Council owned land, actions to work with partners to improve 
biodiversity on other land in the district and actions to improve biodiversity through the 
planning system such as Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) requirements for developments.  

• They would look at the success of the wilding audit recommendations over the last few 
years and whether there would be further opportunities to implement further 
recommendations.  

• Opportunities to deliver the aspirational Greenspace Action Plans and additional 
aspirations as each plan came up for renewal would be considered and reviewed, 
however, they were constrained by resources so they would look at grant funding to help 
deliver these aspects.  

• The Greenspace Team already worked with the Wildlife Trust to improve rivers and 
chalk streams but they would also look to support their aspiration to reintroduce Water 
Voles in Purwell.  

• There were opportunities to expand reduced mowing regimes across the district but it 
was acknowledged that they received a lot of complaints on this. To address this, they 
would improve communication by working with volunteers and resident groups to 
expand into the areas where they had struggled to in the past.   

• They would look at the final version of the Local Nature Recovery Strategy to see where 
the Council could contribute to the actions listed in this.  

• In terms of planning actions, there would be a full review of the Local Plan and they 
would consider biodiversity within this by encouraging developers to implement more 
than the Statutory 10% BNG on developments where possible.  

Page 12



Wednesday, 2nd April, 2025  

 

• Council owned land, both big and small scale would be assessed to see where more 
wildflower areas and wilding could be implemented.     

• They would support habitat banks in accordance with the Local Nature Recovery 
Strategy.  

• Opportunities for the Museum to host climate or nature exhibitions in their space would 
be investigated.   

• There were crosscutting actions in the actions table that encompassed multiple areas of 
sustainability and climate change.  

• One of these was detailed as increasing communication both internally to reduce other 
sources of council emissions and externally to support residents to act more sustainably.    

• Introduction of water saving measures at the allotments would be looked into, however, 
water saving actions within the district relied on the Environmental Agency or water 
companies to act.  

• Areas within the district that would benefit from cooling would be identified, and they 
would undertake feasibility assessments in these areas to see whether trees could be 
planted to provide shade to cyclists and pedestrians in addition to improving biodiversity.  

• Assessment of council sites to ascertain the value of green infrastructure and nature-
based solutions to understand the best use of council owned sites would be considered. 

• The feedback from the public consultation in March was being reviewed and would be 
implemented into the Sustainability Strategy.  

 
Councillor Daniel Allen highlighted the brilliant work that had taken place on sustainability and 
that the fairer, greener statements in the Council Plan had been addressed through this work.  
 

14 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Audio recording – 1 hour 48 minutes 19 seconds 
 
The Chair advised that there was no specific participation from members of the public at this 
meeting, but that public participants had been included as part of discussions on Agenda 
Items 5 and 6.  
 
 
The meeting closed at 9.22 pm 

 
Chair 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

CABINET PANEL ON THE ENVIRONMENT 
 

MEETING HELD IN THE VIRTUAL VIA ZOOM  
ON WEDNESDAY, 17TH SEPTEMBER, 2025 AT 7.30 PM 

 

MINUTES 
 
Present:  Councillors: Amy Allen (Chair),   Joe Graziano and Caroline McDonnell.  

 
In Attendance: Amy Cantrill (Trainee Committee, Member and Scrutiny Officer) and 

Faith Churchill (Democratic Services Apprentice). 
 
Also Present: There were no members of the public present for the duration of the 

meeting.  
 
 

1 CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
Audio recording – 1 minute 29 seconds 
 
Having opened the meeting, the Chair advised that due to unforeseen circumstances, the 
presenter of Agenda Item 6 was unable to attend the meeting.  This being the substantial item 
of business, and there being no other items of business requiring urgent consideration, all 
items would be deferred to the next scheduled meeting. 
 

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies received as all items were deferred to the next meeting.   
 

3 MINUTES - 2 APRIL 2025  
 
The minutes from 2 April 2025 were not considered as all items were deferred to the next 
meeting.   
 

4 NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS  
 
No other business was considered as all items were deferred to the next meeting.   
 

5 COUNCIL ACTIVITY UPDATE AND ACTION TRACKER  
 
This item of business was not considered as all items were deferred to the next meeting.   
 

6 PRESENTATION FROM LETCHWORTH HERITAGE FOUNDATION  
 
This item of business was not presented as all items were deferred to the next meeting.   
 

7 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There was no public participation as all items were deferred to the next meeting.   
 

8 SUGGESTED AGENDA ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
This item of business was not considered as all items were deferred to the next meeting.   
 
 

Page 15



Wednesday, 17th September, 2025  

 

The meeting closed at 7.32 pm 
 

Chair 
 

Page 16



 

CABINET PANEL ON THE ENVIRONMENT 
14th January 2026 

 

*PART 1 – PUBLIC DOCUMENT 
 

 

TITLE OF INFORMATION NOTE: Council Activity Update and Action Tracker 
 

EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR: ENVIRONMENT 
 

PRIORITY: SUSTAINABILITY  
 

1. SUMMARY 
 
Panel Overview 2025/26 
 

1.1 This note highlights the topic for this Panel meeting as well as a Council Activity 
Update, and Action Tracker Review (at Appendix A) for the Cabinet Panel on the 
Environment. 

 
1.2 The Cabinet Panel aims to select topics which will enable open discussion that may 

lead to recommendations to Cabinet from the relevant Executive Members or Director, 
regarding actions that they believe the Council should be taking to address climate and 
environmental issues.  
 

Panel Meeting: 14th January 2026 
 

1.3 This Panel meeting will include an update on council activity pertaining to sustainability, 
including key progress made on our Sustainability Strategy Actions; review of the 
action tracker; an opportunity to suggest future topics and speakers for the work 
programme; an environmental update from the Letchworth Garden City Heritage 
Foundation; and a presentation from Green Heat Co-op on community energy.   

 
2. STEPS TO DATE 
 
2.1 Cabinet approved the establishment of the Cabinet Panel for the Environment at the 

27th June 2019 meeting. The amended terms of reference were tabled for the Full 
Council meeting on the 4th June1. The Constitutional Amendment Report of the 18th 
April 20232 recommended that this Panel be the only remaining panel going forward. 

 
2.2 By way of update to the Panel, we have been involved in the following work:  

 
3.       COUNCIL ACTIVITY  

 
3.1 Contributions to the Hertfordshire Climate Change and Sustainability 

Partnership  (HCCSP) 
 
3.2  The third round of Solar Together has closed. Over 650 North Herts residents                                                     

registered interest and 113 have accepted offers for Solar PV. North Herts also has 
one business accepted for battery storage. 72 solar installations have so far been 
completed in North Herts, totalling 762 panels. 68 batteries have also been installed. 
From the installations completed so far, it is estimated that 63,295kg of CO2 will be 
saved per year. 

 

 
1 Appendix B - Revised Terms of Reference for Cabinet Panel on the Environment.pdf (north-herts.gov.uk) 

2 Constitutional amendment report 18.4.23.docx (north-herts.gov.uk) Page 17

Agenda Item 5

https://srvmodgov01.north-herts.gov.uk/documents/s10891/Appendix%20B%20-%20Revised%20Terms%20of%20Reference%20for%20Cabinet%20Panel%20on%20the%20Environment.pdf
https://srvmodgov01.north-herts.gov.uk/documents/s21855/Constitutional%20amendment%20report%2018.4.23.pdf


3.3       Local Nature Recovery Strategy 
 

3.4 Local Nature Recovery Strategies (LNRS) are statutory spatial strategies which agree 
priorities for nature recovery and propose actions to achieve these priorities. These 
strategies are legislated for in The Environment Act 2021. Development of the LNRS 
for Hertfordshire has been led by Hertfordshire County Council (HCC), working in 
conjunction with the district councils and other stakeholders. The Strategy contains a 
local habitat map and a written statement of biodiversity priorities. Public consultation 
was open throughout summer 2025. The Strategy has now been published and will be 
officially launched in January with a nature summit event. Local Nature Recovery 
Strategy | Hertfordshire County Council 

 
 
3.5 Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme (PSDS) 
 
3.6  The project to decarbonise our leisure facilities is progressing. For the second phase of 

decarbonisation related to Hitchin Town Hall, North Herts Museum, District Council 
Offices, and the learner pool at North Herts Leisure Centre, we are in the process of 
appointing a team to move forward on designs, with the aim of submitting planning 
applications this financial year.  

 
 
3.7 Climate Engagement 
 
3.8 The North Herts engagement hub for climate change and sustainability, the Climate 

Hive, now has 850 subscribers. We continue to keep residents up to date on the latest 
surveys and consultations, eco events, national environment days, the Cabinet Panel 
for the Environment, and council activity. 

 
 
3.9 Sustainable Communities Grant 
 
3.10 The Sustainable Communities Grant, funded by UKSPF, launched and was open to 

applications until 14th September. The team assessed and scored applications during 
the second half of September. £62,778 has been awarded to six local organisations to 
support sustainability projects across the district. The recipients are Royston Museum 
for installation of an air source heat pump system; Benslow Music Trust for the 
installation of EV charging points; Kimpton Parish Council for the installation of solar pv 
and battery storage on the pavilion; St Mary’s Church, Ashwell for biodiversity 
improvements; Create Community for delivery of sustainability educational sessions; 
and Green Heat Co-op for development of retrofit training and a Home Energy Upgrade 
Guide for Royston. North Herts Council awards over £60,000 to local sustainability 
projects | North Herts Council 

 
 
3.11     Sustainability Briefings 
 
3.12    The latest Sustainability briefings are available to view on the website at: Latest updates 

on Sustainability | North Herts Council. They include information on available funding, 
upcoming events, and council activity. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18

https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/partnerships/herts-nature-recovery-partnership/local-nature-recovery-strategy.aspx
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/partnerships/herts-nature-recovery-partnership/local-nature-recovery-strategy.aspx
https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/news/north-herts-council-awards-over-ps60000-local-sustainability-projects
https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/news/north-herts-council-awards-over-ps60000-local-sustainability-projects
https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/latest-updates-sustainability
https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/latest-updates-sustainability


4       SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY 2025-2030 UPDATES 
 

4.1  The Sustainability Strategy 2025-2030 is available here: Sustainability strategy | North 
Herts Council. Actions are being monitored by our Climate and Sustainability Officer 
Group and Political Liaison Board which is comprised of Cabinet Members and our 
Leadership Team. Key progress made so far includes:  
  

• Ongoing progress on-site at our leisure centres as part of the Public Sector 
Decarbonisation Project. 

• Hydrogenated Vegetable Oil (HVO) is now in use in all refuse vehicles, as well 
as in hire vehicles which are being used prior to the arrival of EVs.  

• A mandatory Sustainability e-learning module has been launched for all staff to 
aid understanding of the council’s Sustainability aims and what staff can do to 
work towards these.  

• New EV charge points have gone live in car parks across the district, with more 
due to gain grid connections in the New Year.  

• The Warm Homes Local Grant work continues to be progressed and was 
advertised in our Winter Outlook magazine to reach more of those who are 
eligible. 

• Money from the Sustainable Communities Grant Fund has been distributed to 
recipients and projects are underway.  

• The North Herts Council app has gone live, with additional guidance on 
recycling which is part of the effort to improve recycling rates. The app currently 
has over 10,500 downloads. 

• Key teams are being liaised with on a project to record and monitor the impacts 
of extreme weather events on our services.  

• Further areas in our open spaces are being considered for reduced mowing 
regimes in 2026.  

 
 

5 INFORMATION TO NOTE 
 

5.1  Our Environment inbox is a means for members of the public or organisations to 
provide suggestions/presentations for the panel’s consideration. The address is - 
EnvironmentPanel@north-herts.gov.uk 

 
5.2  The Panel could choose to accept suggestions from outside the meeting including: 

• Suggestions by Members of the public or organisations either at the meeting or 
by email. 

• Recommendations from Council, Cabinet or any other Committee. 

• Suggestions by any Member of the Council. 

• Suggestions by any Officer of the Council. 
 
5.3  The Panel will seek to ensure that consideration of agenda items minimises additional 

burdens on staff resources. Wherever possible, requests are made for the presentation 
of documents already in existence rather than the production of new documents 
specifically for the Panel. Suggestions from outside sources, as detailed in paragraph 
3.2 will only be placed on the work programme if agreed by one of the alternating 
Chairs or at a meeting of the Panel.  

 
5.4  Attendance from external bodies and members of the public is actively encouraged.  
 
5.5  This is a non-decision-making advisory body and therefore this or any notes/reports to 

the Panel do not include a recommendation on a key Executive decision and have not 
been referred to in the Forward Plan. However, recommendations for action from the 

Page 19

https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/sustainability-strategy
https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/sustainability-strategy


Panel for consideration by Cabinet may do so. This will therefore need to be borne in 
mind for any recommendations of the Panel. 

 
 
6 NEXT STEPS 
 
6.1 Other topics for consideration and inclusion in the Panel’s work programme can be 

suggested at each meeting, and also by emailing EnvironmentPanel@north-
herts.gov.uk 
 

 
7 APPENDICES 

 
7.1   Appendix A – Work Programme and Action Tracker 2025/26 

 
 

8 CONTACT OFFICERS 
 
8.1 Georgina Chapman, Policy & Strategy Team Leader, 01462 474121 

Georgina.Chapman@north-herts.gov.uk  
 
8.2 Reuben Ayavoo, Policy & Community Manager, 01462 474212 

Reuben.Ayavoo@north-herts.gov.uk 
 
8.3 Ellie Hollingsworth, Policy & Strategy Officer, 01462 474220 

Ellie.Hollingsworth@north-herts.gov.uk 

Page 20

mailto:Georgina.Chapman@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:Reuben.Ayavoo@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:Ellie.Hollingsworth@north-herts.gov.uk


 

1 
 

APPENDIX A – WORK PROGRAMME AND ACTION TRACKER 2025/26 
 
PROGRAMME FOR CABINET PANEL ON THE ENVIRONMENT MEETINGS 2025-26  
 

Meeting 1.  
17th September 2025 

 
Letchworth Heritage Foundation’s Design Principles and 
sustainability 
 

Meeting 2.   
14th January 2026 

Letchworth Garden City Heritage Foundation – Environmental 
Update 
 
Green Heat Co-op – Community Energy Presentation 

Meeting 3. 
11th February 2026 

TBC 

Meeting 4.   
1st April 2026 

TBC 

 

 

  

Page 21



 

2 
 

CABINET PANEL ON THE ENVIRONMENT – ACTION TRACKER 
Action 
Number 

Action 
 

Objective  Team/Individual 
Responsible  

Timeframe  Measurable  Status 

1 Contact iChoosr to query inverter 

type and use of stored power during 

a power cut.  

To resolve a query 
around inability to use 
stored power from system 
during a power outage. 

Policy & 
Strategy Team 
Leader 

To be 
completed 
by 22nd 
January 
2025 

Response 
from 
iChoosr 

Complete (see 
Information Note 
for 22/01/25 
meeting for 
response. 
Webpage also 
updated with 
info).  

2 Review the asks of Decarbonise 

Letchworth regarding retrofitting and 

Supplementary Planning Guidance; 

ascertain whether NHC can help 

progress action; ascertain NHC 

plans for SPDs and design guidance 

and communicate these to the 

group.  

To help Decarbonise 
Letchworth progress 
retrofit in Letchworth 
Garden City.  

Policy & 
Strategy Team 
Leader 
 
 

 

To be 
completed 
by 1st May 
2025.  

Communica
tion to 
Decarbonis
e 
Letchworth.  

Complete – 
Letchworth 
Heritage 
Foundation 
presented at the 
September 
Letchworth 
Forum meeting 
on this matter. 

       

       

      
 
 
 
  

 

P
age 22

https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/solar-together


 

3 
 

Action 
Number 

Action 
 

Objective  Team/Individual 
Responsible  

Timeframe  Measurable  Status 

      
 
 

 

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES - 2 APRIL AND 17 SEPTEMBER 2025
	Minutes - 17/09/2025 Cabinet Panel on the Environment

	5 INFORMATION NOTE: COUNCIL ACTIVITY UPDATE AND ACTION TRACKER
	Appendix A – Work Programme and Action Tracker 2025/26


